
   

Mississippi Headwaters Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Cass County Board Room Walker, MN  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88905320960  

March 24, 2023 
 10:00 am 

 
 

 

10:00 AM 

 Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 

 

10:05 AM Approve/Amend 

 

 Agenda  

 Consent Agenda – February ’23 Minutes & Expenses 

 

Correspondence 

 

 March Press Release 

 Letter of Support to Legislature 

 Stauber press release 

 

Planning and Zoning (Actions) 

 

 H3a23- Camp Kamaji Hubbard county 

 

Action / Discussion Items: 

 

 MPCA request for funding for kiosk-  Demonstration by Kathy Moore 

 High School Surveys- Discussion 

 Executive Directors report- Discussion 

 

Misc: ☼ Legislature Update (if any) ☼ County Updates 

 

Meeting Adjourned - Thank you 

 

     

Mtgs:  April 28, 2023 10:00 AM- Cass County Courthouse, Walker, MN  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88905320960


 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 

 

Draft Minutes 

 

Monthly Expenses 

 

 



 

Mississippi Headwaters Board 

February 24, 2023 

Cass County Board Room 

322 Laurel St. 

Brainerd, MN 

Optional interactive technology: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85407408708 

MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

Members present by Roll Call:  Scott Bruns (Cass), Ted VanKempen (Hubbard), Dean Newland (Clearwater 
interactive), Craig Gaasvig (Beltrami), Steve Barrows (Crow Wing), Michael Kearney (Aitkin), Robert Kasper 
(Morrison interactive), and Tim Terrill (Executive Director). 
 
Others Present:  Marcel Noyes 
 
Pledge of Allegiance   
2023 Election of Officers:  It was noted on the agenda who the 2023 Chair, Vice-Chair, and Sec./Treasurer are. 
 
Chair Van Kempen asked if there were any additions to the agenda.   
M/S (Gaasvig/Bruns) to approve of the Consent agenda.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Correspondence 
Tim provided the board with the January press release which recognized outgoing board members and their 
contribution to the board. 
 
Tim also provided the board with a Walker Pilot Tribune picture and article which was written in February 
about Tim’s visit with Walker Rotary. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
None 
 
Action/Discussion: 
 

1. Tim showed the board the MHB video about the history and formation of the MHB board. 
2. MHB & 1Watershed 1 Plan program planning-  Tim said that he met with 24 partners in the 

conservation field to discuss 1W1P and how MHB programs could work specifically in those 
watersheds.  Tim provided a powerpoint to the board on how county water planning has changed from 
a county level to a watershed level.  He then briefly discussed the process he used to engage partners 
in the discussion by breaking into small groups and answering questions.  Tim presented the ideas to 
the board and members had time to comment during the discussion.  Comm. Barrows suggested that 
we place signage on all the access landing on the Miss. River first and work with community groups 
(Boy Scouts, etc…) to paddle those stretches to increase efficiency.  Comm. Gaasvig also noted that a 
discussion should be held with DNR about placing trash receptacles at the landings to deal with 



increased use.  The board also provided direction on still continuing with the stormwater retrofit 
analysis but on a needed basis as 1W1P watersheds request it. 

3. Budget and Annual Plan-  Tim presented the annual plan and budget to the board.  It was noted that 
MHB is now relying on grants to fund their basic operations and that general funding from the 
Governor’s budget should be increased.  It is not good for a regulatory organization to be funded by 
grants due to sensitivity of our work.  It was noted that a letter similar to last year’s request be sent to 
all the MHB representatives and senators to reflect our current situation.  Tim will draft a letter and 
send it to Comm. Van Kempen for approval before sending it out.  The annual budget should also note 
that change as well.  M/S (Barrows/Gaasvig) to approve of the SFY ’24 budget and Annual Plan with 
amended changes.  Motion carried unanimously. 

4. Tim provided the board with a Gantt chart which shows progression of programs with a timeline along 
with measurable goals.  Questions from Marcel Noyes were brought to the attention of Tim about how 
much funding is available for easements this year.  Tim said that he would need to talk with Paula, 
MHHCP program coordinator to confirm exact numbers because applicants can change their minds 
between technical committee meetings.  He estimated there was around $300K left for easements but 
would suggest that Crystal talk with Paula to find a more precise number.  It was also asked what MHB 
projects does MHB consider major funding projects.  Tim said that MHHCP along with the Whiskey 
Creek project are two major projects that have a significant amount of funding.   

 
Executive Director’s Report 

1. Tim said that he had a zoom call with Rep. Heintzeman and discussed briefly with him about MHB 
programs.  The timing was good because Rep. Heintzeman next meeting was with the DNR Comm. to 
discuss public water accesses.  MHB might have a future work opportunity with that in the next year. 

2. Tim discussed how the $150K from Enbridge will be used to clean up the Whiskey Creek site.  He noted 
that Good Sam is affiliated with Sanford Health and they are looking at cleaning up the whole site 
(approx.. 70 acres) with their own funding.  It was noted that even if the whole site isn’t cleaned up, 
the 13.8 acres on the project site will be cleaned up. 

 
County & Legislative Updates 
 
Comm. Barrows noted that there was a good virtual turnout for the AMC legislative day, and applauded AMC 
staff for their quick decision that included a logistics workload.  Comm. Gaasvig talked with Rep. Stauber about 
potential for receiving funding for county jail and is working with state officials to get funding as well.  Comm. 
Van Kempen said theire is a special election being held for District 4 in Hubbard County, and 3 candidates are 
running for the seat. 
 
M/S (Barrows/Bruns) to adjourn.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
_____________________________     ________________________________  

Ted Van Kempen, Chairman of the Board    Executive Director Tim Terrill    



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2023 02 TO 2023 02

Report generated: 03/09/2023 13:49
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      1

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
74830    52990        Local Grant                   
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                   -6,000.00          -6,000.00
 23/02    148 02/01/23  GNI 495621 Lisak      48240                                    -1,500.00         -7,500.00
      iNovah     ITASCA COUNTY SUPPORT                              
                                                                                       
 23/02    148 02/01/23  GNI 495625 Lisak      48240                                    -1,500.00         -9,000.00
      iNovah     MORRISON COUNTY SUPPORT                            
                                                                                       
 23/02    148 02/01/23  GNI 495626 Lisak      48240                                    -1,500.00        -10,500.00
      iNovah     HUBBARD COUNTY SUPPORT                             
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:               .00       CREDITS:         -10,500.00      NET:         -10,500.00
 
 
74830    53290        Natural Resources             
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
 23/02    244 02/02/23  GNI                                                            -8,273.03         -8,273.03
      ST OF MN   DNR OMB 2                                          
                                                                                       
 23/02    278 02/02/23  GEN                                                           -19,354.88        -27,627.91
      EFT        DNR2Q-23                                           
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:               .00       CREDITS:         -27,627.91      NET:         -27,627.91
 
 
74830    58300        Miscellaneous Other Revenue   
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                  -22,750.00         -22,750.00
 23/02    148 02/01/23  GNI 495624 Lisak      48240                                   -15,000.00        -37,750.00
      iNovah     MORRISON AIS SUPPORT                               
                                                                                       
 23/02    387 02/03/23  GNI 495857 Lisak      48272                                  -150,000.00       -187,750.00
      iNovah     ENBRIDGE WHISKEY CREEK REIMBUR                     
                                                                                       
 23/02    654 02/13/23  GNI 496390 Lisak      48367                                    -1,000.00       -188,750.00
      iNovah     POPE AIS SUPPORT                                   
                                                                                       
 23/02    654 02/13/23  GNI 496391 Lisak      48367                                    -1,000.00       -189,750.00
      iNovah     COTTONWOOD AIS SUPPORT                             
                                                                                       
 23/02    654 02/13/23  GNI 496393 Lisak      48367                                    -7,000.00       -196,750.00
      iNovah     BELTRAMI AIS SUPPORT                               
                                                                                       
 23/02   1158 02/22/23  GNI 496977 Lisak      48479                                    -2,500.00       -199,250.00
      iNovah     LAC QUI PARLE AIS AID                              
                                                                                       
 23/02   1158 02/22/23  GNI 496975 Lisak      48479                                    -2,000.00       -201,250.00
      iNovah     PINE AIS AID                                       



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2023 02 TO 2023 02

Report generated: 03/09/2023 13:49
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      2

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
                                                                                       
 23/02   1158 02/22/23  GNI 496976 Lisak      48479                                      -500.00       -201,750.00
      iNovah     NORMAN AIS AID                                     
                                                                                       
 23/02   1303 02/17/23  GNI 496805 Lisak      48441                                    -7,700.00       -209,450.00
      iNovah     TODD AIS SUPPORT                                   
                                                                                       
 23/02   1438 02/27/23  GNI 497341 Lisak      48526                                    -1,000.00       -210,450.00
      iNovah     LINCOLN AIS SUPPORT                                
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:               .00       CREDITS:        -210,450.00      NET:        -210,450.00
 
 
74830    61000        Salaries & Wages - Regular    
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    5,802.46           5,802.46
 23/02    477 02/10/23  PRJ pr0210 1230210    1230210     1230                          3,119.08          8,921.54
      pay021023  WARRANT=230210  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 23/02   1220 02/24/23  PRJ pr0224 1230224    1230224     1230                          2,988.27         11,909.81
      Pay022423  WARRANT=230224  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:         11,909.81       CREDITS:                .00      NET:          11,909.81
 
 
74830    61200        Active Insurance              
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    1,792.38           1,792.38
 23/02    477 02/10/23  PRJ pr0210 1230210    1230210     1230                            907.75          2,700.13
      pay021023  WARRANT=230210  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 23/02   1220 02/24/23  PRJ pr0224 1230224    1230224     1230                            885.71          3,585.84
      Pay022423  WARRANT=230224  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          3,585.84       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           3,585.84
 
 
74830    61300        Employee Pension & FICA       
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      837.54             837.54
 23/02    477 02/10/23  PRJ pr0210 1230210    1230210     1230                            451.78          1,289.32
      pay021023  WARRANT=230210  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       
 23/02   1220 02/24/23  PRJ pr0224 1230224    1230224     1230                            431.96          1,721.28
      Pay022423  WARRANT=230224  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          1,721.28       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           1,721.28



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2023 02 TO 2023 02

Report generated: 03/09/2023 13:49
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      3

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
 
 
74830    62100        Telephone                     
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                       61.73              61.73
 23/02    880 02/21/23  API 006205            187765              33538                     6.97             68.70
      W C022123  ACCOUNT #  0002355-8           CONSOLIDATED TELECOM
                                                                                       
 23/02   1220 02/24/23  PRJ pr0224 1230224    1230224     1230                             55.00            123.70
      Pay022423  WARRANT=230224  RUN=1 BI-WEEKL                     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            123.70       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             123.70
 
 
74830    62680        Non-Employee Per Diems        
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      100.00             100.00
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 002534            188345              33616                    50.00            150.00
      W A022823  FEB-MHB MEETING                NEWLAND, DEAN       
                                                                                       
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 003257            188346              33613                    50.00            200.00
      W A022823  FEB MHB MEETING PER DIEM AND M GAASVIG, CRAIG      
                                                                                       
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 003356            188347              33614                    50.00            250.00
      W A022823  FEB MHB MEETING PER DIEM AND M HUBBARD COUNTY TREAS
                                                                                       
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 006952            188348              33615                    50.00            300.00
      W A022823  FEB MHB METTING PER DIEM AND M MICHAEL KEARNEY     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            300.00       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             300.00
 
 
74830    62720        Non-Employee Mileage          
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      104.80             104.80
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 003257            188346              33613                    66.81            171.61
      W A022823  FEB MHB MEETING PER DIEM AND M GAASVIG, CRAIG      
                                                                                       
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 003356            188347              33614                    36.68            208.29
      W A022823  FEB MHB MEETING PER DIEM AND M HUBBARD COUNTY TREAS
                                                                                       
 23/02   1513 02/28/23  API 006952            188348              33615                    99.56            307.85
      W A022823  FEB MHB METTING PER DIEM AND M MICHAEL KEARNEY     
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            307.85       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             307.85
 
 



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2023 02 TO 2023 02

Report generated: 03/09/2023 13:49
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      4

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE
74830    62990        Prof. & Tech. Fee - Other     
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                    9,315.53           9,315.53
 23/02    413 02/07/23  API 102749            187136              33467                   100.00          9,415.53
      W A020723  FACILITY RENTAL- Mississippi H NORTHLAND ARBORETUM 
                                                                                       
 23/02   1609 02/28/23  GEN                                                               525.00          9,940.53
      RECURRING  FINANCIAL SERVICE                                  
                                                                                       

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:          9,940.53       CREDITS:                .00      NET:           9,940.53
 
 
74830    63320        Employee Mileage              
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                      395.81             395.81
 23/02   1598 02/28/23  GNI                                                                68.78            464.59
      WF PCARD   1434 - Cass SWCD MN Traditions                     
                 TIM TERRILL - OOP                                                     
 23/02   1598 02/28/23  GNI                                                                68.78            533.37
      WF PCARD   1434 - MHB monthly meeting                         
                 TIM TERRILL - OOP                                                     
 23/02   1598 02/28/23  GNI                                                               172.92            706.29
      WF PCARD   1434 - DNR roundtable                              
                 TIM TERRILL - OOP                                                     

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:            706.29       CREDITS:                .00      NET:             706.29
 
 
74830    63340        Hotel & Meals Travel Expense  
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                        7.95               7.95
 23/02   1603 02/28/23  GNI                                                                10.89             18.84
      BREM PCARD meal after board meeting                           
                 TIM TERRILL - DAIRY QUEEN #12890                                      

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:             18.84       CREDITS:                .00      NET:              18.84
 
 
74830    64090        Office Supplies               
                                                             REVISED BUDGET                                                      .00
 
                                                             PER 01                       12.59              12.59
 23/02   1603 02/28/23  GNI                                                                 9.90             22.49
      BREM PCARD brochures to Hubbard SWCD                          
                 TIM TERRILL - USPS PO 2611000401                                      
 23/02   1603 02/28/23  GNI                                                                62.03             84.52
      BREM PCARD office paper                                       
                 TIM TERRILL - THE OFFICE SHOP BRAINERD                                

      LEDGER BALANCES --- DEBITS:             84.52       CREDITS:                .00      NET:              84.52



Crow Wing County

ACCOUNT DETAIL HISTORY FOR 2023 02 TO 2023 02

Report generated: 03/09/2023 13:49
User:             KorieW
Program ID:       glacthst

Page      5

ORG      OBJECT PROJ                                                                                    NET LEDGER        NET BUDGET
 YR/PR    JNL EFF DATE  SRC REF1   REF2       REF3         CHECK #     OB                 AMOUNT          BALANCE           BALANCE

          GRAND TOTAL --- DEBITS:         28,698.66       CREDITS:        -248,577.91      NET:        -219,879.25 
 
        38 Records printed
                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Korie Wiggins **                                          



YTD 

spending/rei

mbursement

Projected 

Budget

% of budget 

spent

Monthly Amount

$19,354.88 $58,776.03 $124,000.00 47.40%

$1,682.72 $4,761.46 $9,000.00 52.91%

$200.00 0.00%

$12,000.00 0.00%

$3,600.00 0.00%

$156.00 $83.00 187.95%

$6,000.00 $12,000.00 50.00%

LCCMR acquisition $500.00 0.00% competitive reimbursement

Total $21,037.60 $10,917.46 $36,883.00

Monthly Amount

8,784.55$                $65,218.51 $105,064.00 62.08%

$2,492.00 0.00%

200.00$                   $1,400.00 $2,200.00 63.64%

10.89$                     $438.61 $550.00 79.75%

203.05$                   $1,215.43 $1,600.00 75.96%

310.48$                   $1,642.17 $3,000.00 54.74%

625.00$                   $6,075.00 $30,000.00 20.25%

133.90$                        $1,270.04 $1,350.00 94.08%

$400.00 $750.00 53.33%

Total 10,267.87$                  $77,659.76 $147,006.00

Governor's DNR grant is always $124K every year

LSOHC grant is around $6K to $8K every year

*The total under revenue does not reflect the $124K because it is a non-competitive grant, and it doesn't always fall in the fiscal year.

County Support (52990)

Professional Services (62990)

Miscell. Other revenue (58300)

Expenses: Notes

February SFY'23 Budget Summary

8 county support- Clearwater, Crow Wing, Aitkin, Cass

AIS reimbursement

Salaries/Benefits 

FICA/Med/PERA/LIFE/LTD/Hlth/

WC(61000)

MHB board Per Diem (62680)

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant 

Governor’s DNR grant (53290)

MCIT insurance/work 

comp/liability (61500) reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant

Guidebook sales (58400) reimbursment for Guidebook sales

enbridge reimbursement

Revenues:

non competitive quarterly reimbursement

LSOHC reimbursement

Notes

Commissioner Mileage (62720)

Training & Registration Fees 

(63380)

Hotel/Meals/travel exp. (63340)

Office supplies/operations 

(64090)

CW financial, Northland Arb. Rental

MHB monthly meeting meal

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant 

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grantEmployee Mileage (63320)

reimbursed by Gov. DNR grant AMC conf. registration

MCIT Dividend (58300) MCIT refund

LSOHC grant (53290)

Enbridge program (58300)

telephone, printer paper



 

Clearwater  *  Hubbard  *  Beltrami  *  Cass  *   Itasca  *  Aitkin  *  Crow Wing  *  Morrison 

 

    

 
 

 

IMMEDIATE PRESS RELEASE 3/1/23 

Media Contact 

Tim Terrill 

218-824-1189 

timt@mississippiheadwaters.org 

www.mississippiheadwaters.org 

322 Laurel St. 

Brainerd, MN  56401 

 

Mississippi Headwaters Board decides to meet with schools on the Miss. River 

 

At the January Miss. Headwaters Board (MHB) meeting, the board decided that the Executive 

Director, Tim Terrill, should meet with county Soil & Water Conservation Districts (SWCD’s), and 

also meet with local schools on the Miss. river.  The board felt that a face to face meeting with the 

SWCD’s would help educate them about the mission, and provide a brief overview about what we do.  

“Getting reacquainted with our partners is a key to the preservation of the Miss. river,” said Tim 

Terrill.  Along that line of thought, the board encouraged Tim to meet with local schools on the 

Mississippi river to promote awareness of the organization and educate students about career choices 

in the environmental field.  “Students aren’t always aware of the numerous opportunities available to 

them,” said Chair Ted Van Kempen, “and we can help make that easier for them.  They are our 

future.” 

 

 

 

http://www.mississippiheadwaters.org/


 

Clearwater  *  Hubbard  *  Beltrami  *  Cass  *   Itasca  *  Aitkin  *  Crow Wing  *  Morrison 

 

    

 

Mississippi Headwaters Board 
 

Crow Wing County Land Service Bldg. -  322 Laurel St. Ste. 34- Brainerd, MN  56401 

Web Site: www.mississippiheadwaters.org 

 
2/27/2023 

 

 

MHB Senators and Representatives 

St. Paul, MN  55155 

 
Dear Miss. Headwaters Board Senators and Representatives, 

The Mississippi Headwaters Board (MHB) is an eight-county (Aitkin, Beltrami, Cass, Clearwater, 

Crow Wing, Hubbard, Itasca, and Morrison) joint-powers board which was united in 1980 with the 

signing of the Joint-Powers Agreement (Appendix 5). In 1981, the Minnesota legislature duly 

authorized MHB to preserve and protect the outstanding and unique natural, scientific, historical, 

recreational, and cultural values of the first 400 miles of the Mississippi River. (See Minn. Stat. § 

103F.361, Subd. (1) and (2); Minn. Stat. § 103F.361-377, Appendix 6.).  The MHB’s mission is to 

enhance and protect outstanding and unique natural, scientific, historical, recreational, and cultural 

values in the first 400 miles of the Mississippi River from its source at Lake Itasca in Clearwater 

County to the southerly boundary of Morrison County.  To learn more about our formation and history, 

please go to https://www.mississippiheadwaters.org/ and click on the Living History video. 

 

The MHB uses regulatory actions and volunteer programs to sustain our mission including: 

 A Comprehensive Plan that authorizes zoning controls over the first 400 miles of the 

Mississippi river and Headwaters Lakes. 

 A recreational signage program that allows users to learn more about each river section 

between landings and how to navigate between them. 

 A variety of recreational/social events (resourcetainment) in multiple counties that promote 

protection, education, recreational opportunity, and economic development at key areas on the 

Mississippi River. 

 Storm water retrofit analysis to identify and implement pollution prevention practices for cities 

on the Mississippi river. 

 A voluntary easement and fee-title acquisition program to permanently preserve and protect 

land in the Mississippi headwaters watershed. 

Currently our funding through the state is $124,000 annually.  The MHB as a regulatory agency is 

currently supported by this funding along with other grant funds to support our operational expenses.  

The 8 county Mississippi Headwaters Board Commissioners request that we receive a moderate 

https://www.mississippiheadwaters.org/


 

Clearwater  *  Hubbard  *  Beltrami  *  Cass  *   Itasca  *  Aitkin  *  Crow Wing  *  Morrison 

increase of $26,000 to allow us to continue to fulfill our statutory responsibility and voluntary 

programs that have protected this great river.  Please email our executive director, Tim Terrill at 

timt@mississippiheadwaters.org so we could set up a meeting to discuss this further.   

Thank you for your consideration on this matter, and we hope to be hearing from you shortly to discuss 

options . 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

mailto:timt@mississippiheadwaters.org










 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

H3a23- Camp Kamaji 

 

 





























































































































































































Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, February 27, 2023 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT:  

NEW BUSINESS 

Variance Application 3-V-23 by BPIL, LLC-Camp Kamaji: All of the SW 1/4 of NE 1/4, Gov't Lot 2, and part 
of Gov't Lot 1, Section 2, Township 145, Range 32, and part of Gov't Lot 9, Section 1, Township 145, Range 32, 
Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcels 07.02.00100 and 07.01.02400. 
Applicant is requesting an after-the-fact variance from Section 701 of the Shoreland Management Ordinance to 
enlarge two cabins and add a shower house that are part of a nonconforming use. Section 701 states that 
additions to a structure devoted in whole or part to a nonconforming use are prohibited as is the creation of a 
new structure where none previously existed. 

Enclosed Document(s): 
 3-V-23 application 
 2020 aerial imagery w/2’ elevation contours  
 12/07/2022 notice of violation letter and accompanying photos 
 Staff dwelling unit density calculation dated 01/23/2023 

 
This property has been used as a seasonal youth camp for many decades. It currently is a camp for girls. The 
use is a legal nonconforming use so expansion of such a use is prohibited unless a variance from Section 701 
of the SMO to do so is sought and approved. 
 
The items that are the subject of this application were brought to the County’s attention when the owner contacted 
the Env. Services Department and inquired about what permits might be needed for some construction projects 
he said had already begun. The ensuing conversations led to staff learning that additions to two staff cabins had 
been shelled up and a foundation for a shower house had been begun. Staff visited the site and documented 
that these three construction projects were underway. A stop work order was thus issued on December 2, 2022 
and an accompanying notice of violation letter dated December 10, 2022 (enclosed) was sent to the applicant. 
 
The two staff cabins are both 16’ x 16’ in footprint and are located in Tier 4 (i.e. 801’-1000’ from the OHW). The 
additions begun on the two cabins are also both 16’ x 16’ in footprint. The application states that the additions 
will not increase the number of bedrooms in the cabins as they are meant to provide private sleeping areas for 
staff vs. the existing communal sleeping area. The property is compliant with dwelling unit density requirements 
for all tiers (see enclosed staff dwelling unit density calculation.) 
 
The shower house is proposed to be 12’ x 16’ in footprint and located next to an existing wash house that 
contains sinks and toilets only. Six shower stalls are planned to be placed In the structure. The structure site is 
located toward the rear of Tier 1 (i.e. 0-267’ OHW setback) and as it is not a dwelling unit, it does not count 
toward the dwelling unit density. 
 
The two staff cabins do not have bathrooms and the proposed additions will not increase the number of 
occupants so SSTS sizing is not affected and thus no new SSTS design(s) is/are required. A new SSTS design 
was submitted for the shower house and approved by staff. The SSTS will be sized to accommodate 40 people. 
A flow meter will be required to be installed to monitor actual water usage. The proposed cabin additions and 
shower house meet setback requirements from existing and proposed SSTS. 
 
SSTS compliance inspections were submitted for all the systems on the property as part of the variance 
application. All but one system were found to be compliant. The noncompliant system services the structure 
labeled as the “lower shower house” in the application sketches. Its reason for noncompliance is the tank was 
found to be cracked.  



Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, February 27, 2023 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
There is a history of ordinance violations on this property going back to the late 1990s. The recurring issue has 
been construction of structure or deck/platform improvements without getting permits and/or variances. This 
pattern continued through various ownership changes. This information is shared as it is relevant background 
given the application is after-the-fact involving three separate items. 
 
Despite the circumstances of the application being after-the-fact, staff is supportive of the three requests given 
the property will continue to comply with dwelling unit density requirements, all structures meet setbacks, the 
SSTS needs for the shower house are able to be addressed, the overall SSTS capacity of the property will 
increase without an increase in the amount of campers, and the three items will be improvements that will benefit 
the camp and how it operates. 
 
If one or more of the requested variances is granted, since the property is on Wolf Lake, certification of the 
Board’s variance decision by the Mississippi Headwaters Board will be required in order for the variances to be 
valid. 
 
Below are draft findings of fact for the Board’s consideration: 
 
1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official controls?  

           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? The property will continue to comply with the ordinance’s dwelling unit density provisions 
after the two staff cabin additions are made. The two cabin additions and the proposed shower house 
greatly exceed the structure setbacks. The property is so densely covered by mature coniferous tree cover 
that the three structures will not be visible from the lake or adjacent/nearby properties. These 
improvements will not cause any increase in the number of camp staff or campers.  

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official 
control? 

              Yes ( X )  No (   ) 
Why or why not? Doubling the size of two small 16’ x 16’ staff cabins to provide private bedrooms is a 
reasonable use. Providing an additional shower house for campers to use is also reasonable as it will 
reduce the camper usage of the existing shower facilities which then lessens the load on the septic 
systems servicing these facilities. All three structures meet all ordinance setback requirements. 

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the current or 
prior property owners?          

            Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 
 Why or why not? The camp use of the property is a legal nonconforming use. The Shoreland Management 

Ordinance requires a variance be approved in order to add onto existing structures or construct new 
structures that are devoted in part or whole to the nonconforming use. This ordinance provision was not 
created by the prior or current property owners. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 

             Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? The camp sits on 1.5 government lots and another full quarter quarter section of land. 
The nearest residences to the camp are 830’ to the SW of the property and ¼ mile to the SE of the 



Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, February 27, 2023 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

property. Large wetlands separate the camp structures and areas where activities take place from the 
nearest properties owned by other parties. The camp is covered by dense, mature coniferous tree cover 
so the three structures will not be visible from any adjacent properties. The three improvements will also 
not cause any increase in the number of staff or campers on the property so the use will not intensify. 

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?       
           Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. The difficulty is caused 
by the camp use of the property being a nonconforming use which triggers the need for a variance 
whenever structural additions or new structures are desired to be added to the property. 

Add On for an After-The-Fact Variance 
 
If the Board of Adjustment answers yes to all 5 questions for a variance in the first instance, thereby finding 
that all of the criteria set forth in Section 1103, Item 1, parts 1 through 5, are met, then the following additional 
criteria may be considered and weighed by the Board of Adjustment in determining whether to grant or deny a 
request for the after-the-fact variance: 
 
1. Why did the applicant fail to obtain the required permit or comply with the applicable official control 

before commencing work?  Was there any attempt to comply with the applicable official controls?                              
          
            Yes ( X ) No (   )  

Why or why not? After being notified that the structures under construction were in violation of the 
Shoreland Management Ordinance, the applicant promptly submitted this after-the-fact variance 
application as a means by which the violations could be brought into compliance. (Note: staff 
recommends asking the applicant the first question during the hearing and then adding the applicant’s 
response to this finding’s answer.) 

 
2. Did the applicant make a substantial investment in the property before learning of the failure to comply 

with the applicable official controls? 
            Yes (   )  No ( X  ) 

Why or why not? The shower house foundation consists of some boards and posts that could easily be 
removed in an hour or two. The two additions to the two cabins consist of just the framing and some 
plywood exterior sheathing which also wouldn’t be very involved to remove and that don’t add up to 
much value. 
 

3. Did the applicant complete the work before being informed of the violation of applicable official 
controls? 

            Yes (   )  No ( X  ) 
Why or why not? The applicant informed the Env. Services Dept. of the work having begun so Dept. 
staff were able to visit the site and place a stop work order on the work at the stages the projects were 
in (as shown in the variance application.) The applicant thereafter ceased working on the structures. 
 

4. Are there structures, circumstances, or conditions in the area similar to those that are the subject of the 
variance request? 

            Yes (   ) No ( X  ) 



Staff Report 
Hubbard County Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment 
Monday, February 27, 2023 Hearing/Meeting 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Why or why not? There are no other camps like this one in the area. The nearest similar camp of which 
we are aware is a camp on the south side of Lake Plantagenet that is a bit over 10 miles to the west of 
this property. 

 
5. Based on all of the facts, does it appear to the Board of Adjustment that the applicant acted in good 

faith? 
            Yes (   ) No (  X ) 

Why or why not? The applicant did not contact the Env. Services Dept. about permitting requirements 
for the three projects until after the work was already underway. 

 
6. Would the benefit to the county appear to be outweighed by the detriment the applicant would suffer if 

forced to remove the structure? 
           Yes (   ) No (  X ) 

Why or why not? The three structures all meet and exceed setback requirements. The structures are 
not visible from the lake or adjacent/nearby properties. The two cabin additions are only 16’ x 16’ and 
the shower house is only 12’ x 16’ in footprint. Had the applicant requested a variance prior to 
commencing construction, we would have granted it so while the applicant ought to have requested 
permission rather than forgiveness, hopefully the lesson has been learned. Requiring the three projects’ 
removal would thus be overly punitive. 

 

 
 































Variance Application 3-V-23 by BPIL, LLC-Camp Kamaji:  
2020 Aerial Imagery w/Elevation Contours Overlain 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Variance Application 3-V-23 by BPIL, LLC-Camp Kamaji:  
2020 Aerial Imagery w/Elevation Contours Overlain 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 Environmental Services 
 

 301 Court Avenue, Park Rapids, MN 56470 
  Phone: 218.732.3890 

www.co.hubbard.mn.us/departments/environmental_services/index.php 
 

Eric Buitenwerf, Env. Services Director  Bryan Haugen, Asst. Env. Services Director  Staci Lee, Admin. Asst. 
Env. Specialists: Aaron Anderson, Demey DeJong, Kal Larson  GIS Supervisor: Jack Bovee 

 

Hubbard County is an equal opportunity employer 
 

 

March 1, 2023 
 
BPIL, LLC 
Camp Kamaji 
32054 Wolf Lake Road 
Cass Lake, MN 56633 
 
Re: Hubbard County Board of Adjustment decision for Variance Application 3-V-23 
 
Dear Mr. Nelson, 
 
The Hubbard County Board of Adjustment met on Monday, February 27, 2023 to review and consider the following 
variance application: 
 
Variance Application 3-V-23 by BPIL, LLC-Camp Kamaji: All of the SW 1/4 of NE 1/4, Gov't Lot 2 and part of Gov't Lot 
1, Section 2, Township 145, Range 32, and part of Gov't Lot 9, Section 1, Township 145, Range 32, Farden Township on 
Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcels 07.02.00100 and 07.01.02400. Applicant is requesting an after-the-
fact variance from Section 701 of the Shoreland Management Ordinance to enlarge two cabins and add a shower house 
that are part of a nonconforming use. Additions to a structure devoted in whole or part to a nonconforming use are 
prohibited as is the creation of a new structure where none previously existed. 
 
The official decision of the Hubbard County Board of Adjustment is as follows: 
 

Grob made a motion to approve the variance application as presented with the following conditions: 
 

1. Certification of the Board of Adjustment’s approval by the Mississippi Headwaters Board will be required 
in order for the variance to be valid. 

2. A flow meter must be installed on the new septic system that is to be installed to service the shower 
house in order to monitor actual water usage in the shower house. 

  
Petersen seconded the motion that passed 4 – 0. 

 
This is in accordance with Section 1103 of the Hubbard County Shoreland Management Ordinance and the findings of 
fact on file with the Environmental Services Department. 
 
Your variance application itself does not constitute a permit. You will still need to obtain the necessary certification by the 
Mississippi Headwaters Board (MHB) and if certified, apply for and obtain after-the-fact land use permit(s) for the two 
cabin additions and shower house. If the MHB does not certify the variance application, the BOA’s approval will be null 
and void. 
 
Please contact our department at (218) 732-3890 with any questions. 
 
Most sincerely, 
 
  
 
Eric Buitenwerf 
Environmental Services Director 
 



February 27, 2023 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

HUBBARD COUNTY  
 
Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Meeting Minutes  
 
6:00 p.m. on Monday, February 27, 2023 
 
Chair Mark Petersen opened the meeting with the following additional members present: Ken Grob, 
Veronica Andres, and Mike Kovacovich. Also present was Environmental Services Director Eric 
Buitenwerf.  
 
Petersen started the meeting by reading the procedure by which the meeting of the Planning 
Commission/Board of Adjustment will be conducted to the audience. 
 

Board of Adjustment: 
 
Variance Application 3-V-23 by BPIL, LLC-Camp Kamaji: All of the SW 1/4 of NE 1/4, Gov't Lot 2, 
and part of Gov't Lot 1, Section 2, Township 145, Range 32, and part of Gov't Lot 9, Section 1, 
Township 145, Range 32, Farden Township on Wolf Lake, a recreational development lake. Parcels 
07.02.00100 and 07.01.02400. Applicant is requesting an after-the-fact variance from Section 701 of 
the Shoreland Management Ordinance to enlarge two cabins and add a shower house that are part of 
a nonconforming use. Section 701 states that additions to a structure devoted in whole or part to a 
nonconforming use are prohibited as is the creation of a new structure where none previously existed. 
 
Jason Nelson, 32054 Wolf Lake Road, Cass Lake, MN, presented the application. 
 
Nelson stated we are requesting to expand. The first two projects are two identical buildings that are 
staff cabins. We’re requesting to double the size of them to add bedrooms in the back, but not 
increasing the amount of people that would be staying in those cabins. These are for our leadership 
staff so that they have just privacy while they're at camp during the summer. What we've seen, over 
the last couple years of the pandemic, having older staff in camp might involve them bringing a 
spouse or a younger child that's not old enough for camp. This is an incentive for them to come to 
camp during the summer. The third project is building a new shower house with six showers. We 
already have two wash houses right now. They have sinks, toilets, and showers in them. We would 
like to make this a third one just as another option available for our campers. The reason that we 
started construction on the two staff cabins was because we thought that those were past 1,000’ from 
the ordinary high water mark. 
 
Andres asked why didn't you seek permits prior to construction? 
 
Nelson replied we thought it was past the 1,000’ mark, but it is 890’ from the ordinary high water 
mark. That is why we started it, and that's my fault. 
 
Andres clarified so you were under the impression that you were outside of shoreland? 
 
Nelson agreed. I think there's no permit needed past the 1,000’ mark. 



February 27, 2023 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Andres replied correct, when you're outside of shoreland there's no permit required. 
 
Nelson stated that's my fault. 
 
Grob added in the staff report there's a suggestion that a flow meter be required to monitor the actual 
water usage. I believe that's for the new shower house. What is the reason behind that? 
 
Buitenwerf explained so that we can have more accurate information to go on in the future. When 
they look at further expansion, we can have a better sense of actual usage versus design usage. 
When you've got multiple shower houses and wash areas, it's not going to always be consistent that 
“x” number are using this one consistently and “x” number are using that one consistently. It just gives 
us a better idea of actual use. 
 
Grob asked this would meter just the new shower house? 
 
Buitenwerf agreed. 
 
Grob continued that should be a condition we should consider for the approval. 
 
Nelson stated we're open to adding that. 
 
Petersen opened for public comment. 
 
No public comment was given. 
 
Petersen closed public comment. 
 
Petersen stated I personally don't have any other questions regarding this. 
 
Andres explained anytime you want to build anything on that property, whether it meets the setback 
or not, because it's nonconforming, you have to seek a variance first. 
 
Nelson replied that's my fault. I will do that in the future.  
 
Grob made a motion to approve the variance application as presented with the following conditions 
and adopt the staff report findings of fact: 
 

1. Certification of the Board of Adjustment’s approval by the Mississippi Headwaters Board 
will be required in order for the variance to be valid. 

2. A flow meter must be installed on the new septic system that is to be installed to service 
the shower house in order to monitor actual water usage in the shower house. 

  
Petersen seconded the motion that passed 4 – 0. 
 

Findings of Fact 



February 27, 2023 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

1. Is the variance in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official controls?  
           Yes ( X )  No (  ) 

Why or why not? The property will continue to comply with the ordinance’s dwelling unit density 
provisions after the two staff cabin additions are made. The two cabin additions and the proposed 
shower house greatly exceed the structure setbacks. The property is so densely covered by 
mature coniferous tree cover that the three structures will not be visible from the lake or 
adjacent/nearby properties. These improvements will not cause any increase in the number of 
camp staff or campers.  

2.   Is the property owner proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control? 

              Yes ( X )  No (   ) 
Why or why not? Doubling the size of two small 16’ x 16’ staff cabins to provide private bedrooms 
is a reasonable use. Providing an additional shower house for campers to use is also reasonable 
as it will reduce the camper usage of the existing shower facilities which then lessens the load on 
the septic systems servicing these facilities. All three structures meet all ordinance setback 
requirements. 

3.  Is the need for a variance due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
current or prior property owners?          

            Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 
 Why or why not? The camp use of the property is a legal nonconforming use. The Shoreland 

Management Ordinance requires a variance be approved in order to add onto existing structures 
or construct new structures that are devoted in part or whole to the nonconforming use. This 
ordinance provision was not created by the prior or current property owners. 

4.  Will the issuance of the variance maintain the essential character of the locality? 

             Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? The camp sits on 1.5 government lots and another full quarter quarter section of 
land. The nearest residences to the camp are 830’ to the SW of the property and ¼ mile to the 
SE of the property. Large wetlands separate the camp structures and areas where activities take 
place from the nearest properties owned by other parties. The camp is covered by dense, mature 
coniferous tree cover so the three structures will not be visible from any adjacent properties. The 
three improvements will also not cause any increase in the number of staff or campers on the 
property so the use will not intensify. 

5. Does the stated practical difficulty involve more than just economic considerations?      
           Yes ( X  )  No (  ) 
Why or why not? Economics are not cited in the application as a practical difficulty. The difficulty 
is caused by the camp use of the property being a nonconforming use which triggers the need for 



February 27, 2023 Planning Commission/Board of Adjustment Hearing/Meeting 
Minutes 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

a variance whenever structural additions or new structures are desired to be added to the 
property. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action/Discussion 
 

MPCA request for funding for kiosk-  Demonstration by Kathy Moore 

High School Surveys- Discussion 

              Executive Directors report- Discussion 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  





2023 High School Survey 

N=128 

 

 

1. In your opinion, how informed are you about Environmental work opportunities available to you? 

Not informed    slightly informed  Moderately    Very informed  

20   54   40   9 

 

2.  What did you learn most about the Miss. Headwaters Board in the video or presentation given to you?  

Not Much. Made to spite the government. Enhance the safety of the waters. Protect the Miss. clean safe and 

put directions on it. There is a board that works to protect the 1st 400 miles of the Miss, and recognized 2 

people in a picture of the board. First 400 miles is protected. Protect free flowing River and not be turned 

into a national park. Make it safe for people, make sure people have their rights when using the River. River 

was almost federal property. Didn’t know how much care was given to the Miss. river headwaters. Went to 

courts, regulatory agency, helps with the health of the River, assessing risks, caring for the River is important. 

Want to protect the history and nature of the river. How citizens impact the job and improve river conditions. 

MHB has 8 counties and are the cops of the river. Invasive species in River, importance of River and 

surrounding land. Zebra mussels are invasive, Greatest river in the land, zoning. Created in 1980. How much 

work goes into protecting a river, communicating with other counties in MN. Reach out to people to bring 

awareness to protect the Miss, and I bring awareness and values to other bodies of water. Didn’t know they 

had all these protecals to keep one river and people safe. Lots of opportunity. Establish parks. The jobs 

revolving around water access, all which help the biotic and abiotic factors revolving around water. Fed. Wild 

& Scenic rivers act under federal control, navigation signs, regulatory. Better for counties to have control than 

Feds. A lot of counties disagreeing in the 1980’s and MHB has jurisdiction over counties. Create plans to keep 

it safe. Twitter account. The thought of keeping a clean and healthy river for the people , community, and 

environment. Buys land. Learned all the work and tasks done by the board. Benefits from local control. 

Founded in 1980, MHB trumps all county jurisdictions. Miss. made more accessible for tourists and visitors. 

Founded by Bob Lessard. How it was created. River important to life and other things. When it rains stay back 

and keep house back. Important part of MN. A lot of people don’t care about the water but the headwaters 

does and trying to help people not ruin the lake. A lot of work and thought about things. Counties contribute 

to protect it. Riverwatch program to test river, protects health and drinking water. Guidebooks. We must 

protect the Miss. and public lands, it takes maps to help navigate. MHB has guidebooks, 30,000 followers on 

FB and Twitter accounts. Signs on the Miss. for canoes and kayaks. Local zoning. Miss. river mostly represents 

N. America. They seem really adamant about preserving the Miss. headwaters and teaching others about 

preservation, and work hard to do so. County Comm. work on board. The board is the only one of its kind in 

the USA. Didn’t know the MHB existed. Aitkin has more river miles than other states, trees filter water, no 

houses on river. Thankful Bob Lessard for rights of hunters and fishermen. Programs to keep river clean. 

They have saved many places.MN counties agreed to work together. Annual events for kayaking. 

 

3.  What did you learn about yourself today? 



Nothing New, IDK, I learned that I care about the river because I have memories of it and enjoy its beauty.  

Went kayaking 8 miles of Miss and fell in love. My rights when using rivers as long as I follow the rules and 

laws out there. Initially interested in a career in agriculture or natural resources, but now thinking I’m leaning 

more towards agriculture. My awareness of the life round me is important along with its effects on others. 

Could possibly go into this field. I don’t care about the river. Made me think about to pick up trash because 

most people will pass by it. To appreciate our area better, be more aware of the outdoors and river. I don’t 

know enough about the environment or programs in MN. Might not be bad working for it. Do what I’m good 

at and love it. The topic is confusing. How they clean it up. Won’t go into environmental work. How much I 

have forgotten about care of the waters. Be more mindful of the river, something I would want to go into. 

Fortunate to be so close to such an important river. Appreciate the MHB because I lover our waters. How 

much I rely on water as a source of recreation, health and life. Lost interest in environmental science degree 

and career, but now reconsidering. Not aware of environmental movements around Grand Rapids. There’s 

one thing everybody is great at.  I can do anything I put my mind too. Important natural resources so close. 

Want to explore environmental work opportunities. Very interested in NR work. Not just DNR jobs.Highly 

informed on local, political, and community issues. Env. Safety and cleanliness is useful and needed. I like 

water. I miss being outside learning about environment, want to help with different movements. Takes 2.5 

hours to paddle down from point to point. Like being outside and a cool job. Start caring more about river and 

teach others not to ruin the river. I could go into this after high school. Need to go on a river. Rivers are cool. 

Our body is mostly water. I live in a unique place. I care about the river. River is cool.  Live in a unique place. 

Lots of people take care of the River. There are opportunities and I can have a career in the NR field. Looking 

into this field might help me with college decisions. How much we have that we don’t know. I am connected 

to other places by river. Would be cool to do some volunteer work hours. Video interesting, I like fishing and 

working with my hands. I can have a job in the env. If I want too. Triggers my imagination. Watchdog, help 

with invasive species. At least one NR job that would suit me well. Want to do lab work over politics. Want to 

go kayaking this summer. Stronger heart for rivers and the fight for conservation of the river. I want to be a 

conservation officer. 

 

4. Now that you heard this presentation, are you more confident in your knowledge of Natural Resource 

opportunities? 

 

Yes 118   No 10 

 

 

 



Executive Director Report 
 January - February 2022 

 
Personnel, Budget, Administration, Information & Education, Correspondence 
 

1. Reviewed monthly budget. 
2. Prepared monthly agenda packet. 
3. Sent in monthly expense report. 
4. Sent press release to newspapers. 
5. Reviewed monthly variances as they are brought forward by counties. 
6. Sent out letter to MHB Senators and Reps requesting additional funding. 
7. August 2nd 2023 is a ribbon cutting ceremony with Big Sandy ACOE dam rehabilitation 

project.  Working with locals to have an MHB presence at that event and possibly a 
kayaking opportunity. 

8. Set up meetings with MHB Comm. to discuss signage placement. 
9. Updated school survey from high schools. 
10. Reviewed and updated MHB recreational website to make it more interactive an user 

friendly. 
11. Chosen to present at EDAM conference session Utilizing Resourcetainment to Retain 

Workers and Encourage Economic Development.  Conference will be at Mayo Civic 
Center in Rochester on June 29th. 

12. Developed draft budget for MN Traditions Keep it Clean Campaign. 
 

Meetings & Networking 
 

1. Attended statewide AIS meeting and presented MN Traditions to 66 people. 
2. Met with the Aitkin SWCD and showed video. 
3. Met with YMCA director Shane Riffle and began planning for a race day in July. 
4. Attended Miss. Brainerd advisory committee meeting.  Ultimately the policy committee 

will need to decide if they want to become a JPC or JPB. 
5. Meeting with Comm. Newland about signage on Miss. River. 
6. Reached out to DNR parks and trails digital media coordinator, Kristin Loobeek, to 

discuss how MN Traditions and DNR can partner to boost followership. 
7. Held meeting with Aitkin, Cass, Morrison, and Itasca about stretches on the Miss. river 

to sign. 


	1 3.24.23 agenda
	2 Att consent cover-minutes
	3 23-2.24 minutes
	4 MHB February DETAIL
	5 sfy2023 monthly budget sheet
	6 3.1.23 Press release
	7 LOS2.27.23 Legislative funding request letter
	7.5 Stauber post
	8  Att P&Z
	9 Hubbard Camp Kamaji
	8 Hubbard Camp Kamaji
	8 Hubbard Camp Kamaji
	1 3-V-23 BPIL, LLC variance app
	2 3-V-23 BPIL, LLC variance app staff rpt
	3-V-23 BPIL, LLC variance app NOV letter
	4 3-V-23 BPIL, LLC variance app dwelling unit density calc
	5 3-V-23 BPIL, LLC variance app 2020 aerial imagery

	3-V-23 BPIL LLC decision letter

	Feb 27 2023 PCBOA 3V23 draft mtg minutes

	10 Att action-discussion
	10.5 Kiosk sign
	11 High School cumulative survey
	22-3.24 Executive Staff Report

